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From: Tanya Koshy 
Sent: Monday, May 10, 2021 1:51 PM
To:  

Subject: Recommendation 52.3

  

Dear Acting Captain Altorfer: 

Our office has completed its review of the materials related to Recommendation 52.3 that have been submitted to us as 
part of the collaborative reform process. After reviewing the package and information provided by the Department, the 
California Department of Justice finds as follows: 

Recommendation 52.3:  The SFPD should engage in data collection and analysis to measure the effectiveness of 
strategies aimed at all community policing issues, particularly its response to the homeless community. The analysis 
should be part of an ongoing review and publication and reflect the commitment to greater transparency and 
community engagement. 

Response to Recommendation 52.3:  

SFPD’s primary support for its compliance with this recommendation is its participation in the Healthy Streets Operation 
Center (HSOC), which is a collaboration among SFPD, the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing, the 
Department of Public Health, and Public Works to address homelessness in the city. HSOC provides coordinated 
outreach to people experiencing homelessness and people struggling with behavioral health issues. The California 
Department of Justice agrees with Hillard Heintze that SFPD plays an integral role in this collaborative but that it does 
not drive the process. Given that, it is reasonable that SFPD would not be the stakeholder that leads HSOC’s work on the 
data collection and analysis recommended here. 

SFPD has nonetheless provided support that it engages in data collection and analysis as part of its role in HSOC. Prior to 
the implementation of the HSOC, most city departments involved in addressing homelessness tracked related data in 
siloes. HSOC centralized data collection and analysis within the City Controller’s Office, which is now in charge of 
maintaining dashboards that provide statistics on various issues related to HSOC’s work, including the number of people 
whom SFPD encounters in response to calls for service and the number of people whom HSOC team members 
proactively interact with to provide referrals or connections to care. It is important to note that, due to the pandemic, 
the City Controller’s Office reallocated its staff resources elsewhere and currently only maintains data and dashboards 
related to the number of tents and occupied vehicles in the city. 

The San Francisco Police Department’s HSOC Unit chief, along with the HSOC management team, reviews the dashboard 
to ensure that the SFPD and other HSOC staffing levels are adequate and deployed appropriately. The HSOC 
management team reviews the dashboards to ensure that the appropriate resources and outreach efforts are being 
deployed appropriately and effectively. The HSOC partners also have daily calls during the week in which they discuss 
that day’s efforts at outreach and any need for additional outreach. As part of that daily call, the HSOC partners plan for 
outreach the next day and determine the appropriate level of resources to deploy and the locations of outreach, among 
other issues. Managers from each of the HSOC partner agencies also meet on a weekly basis to discuss updates on 
outreach efforts, resources, and the need for any policy revisions, among other issues. 

Based upon all of the above, the Department of Justice finds that SFPD is in substantial compliance with this 
recommendation.  Please let us know if you have any questions or would like to discuss this further.  

   This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 
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Tanya 

  
Tanya S. Koshy (she/her) 
Deputy Attorney General 
Civil Rights Enforcement Section 
California Department of Justice 
1515 Clay Street, Suite 2100 
Oakland, CA  94612 

 
  
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the 
intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication.  





    

              
         

             
             

      

             
            

               
           

 

   

             
            

            
 

           
           

         
             

           
             

   

             
             

         

         
             

          
             

            
            

          
 

    



• Collaborative Reform Completion Memorandum 

Compliance Measures: 

1) Evidence of data collection and analysis to measure community policing 

effectiveness, particularly as it relates to the homeless community, and 

consistent with actions in Recommendations 39.1, 4�.1, and 46.2.

For an example of evidence of internal data collection and analysis to measure, 

community policing effectiveness H.S.O.C. uses a monthly dashboard report to 

measure the progress towards objectives (See Attachments #1-5). The San

Francisco Police Department's H.S.O.C. unit Operations section chief, along with the 

H.S.O.C. Management Team, reviews the dashboard to measure the productivity of 

H.S.O.C. overall and the individual officer's output. The section chief then ensures that 

the San Francisco Police Department H.S.O.C. staffing levels are adequate and 

deployed appropriately. The H.S.O.C. Management team reviews the dashboards

to ensure that the appropriate resources and outreach efforts are being deployed 

appropriately and are effective.

The Dashboard is maintained by the City Controller's Office and it is published on

the interactive Dashboards online at the City Controller's website

(https:// sfgov.org/scorecards/H.S.O.C.). The City Controller's Office uses this data

to continually analyze the effectiveness of H.S.O.C, and all the city partners that

work within the H.S.O.C. team. This information is used evaluate the effectiveness

of outreach to the unhoused and that resources are available and being used 

appropriately. This data collection and analysis is continuous and ongoing.

The Dashboard is broken down into four sections:

1. Intake: This dashboard focuses on how H.S.O.C. receives and responds to service 

requests, and answers questions including:

• How many service requests does H.S.O.C. receive?
• How many calls on a given day does H.S.O.C. close? How long do calls stay open?
• Which departments are responding to calls?

2. Street Response: This dashboard focuses on how H.S.O.C. engages with individuals on 

the street. Engagements may be related to call response or to proactive outreach. The 

dashboard answers questions including:

• How many street engagements are occurring across departments?
• How many street engagements result in a connection to services?
• What is the service acceptance rate among engaged individuals?
• How many planned Encampment Resolutions occur (multi-department response for 

large encampments)? 
PSPPB Form 2001 v2 



    

             
         

        
             

             
          

 

             
              

       
           

  
           

           
            

            
             

             
              

           
             

         

              
  

             
           

          
          
           

             
          

         
            

    

            
        

    



    

 

            
            
          

            
             

            
            

               
           

       

             
          
              

       

            

             
           
          

          
           

             
          

         
            

    

              
         

        
             

             
             
            

   

              
            

              
    



    

             
               

               
              

               
              

             

                
              
          

                 
              

            
               
           

              
              

             
                
      

                
               

            
                
              

           
                

                 
          

              
           

         
              

   
        

            
 

              
            

  
    



 

    

            
              

                  
            

            
            

             
               

  

           
        

            
           

              
            

  

          
          

             
           

            

              
              

            
             

            
                 

              
 

 
               

             
           

                
               
              

                  
          

            
    



    

              
            

              
            

                
               

           
                    

              
           
                

                
           

             
            

         
              

   
        

            
 

             
             

  

            
                 

                  
               

            
            

             
               

  

 

      
       
        
       

    




